
                                                                                         Council of Governors 22 May 2023 
 

Page 1 of 11 
 

 
 
 
 

Minutes of the Council of Governors meeting held on 
22nd May 2023 in the 

Trust Boardroom and via Microsoft Teams 
 

Present:  
Kevin Arnold Public Governor 
Mark Brewin Staff Governor 
Lucinda Herklots Lead Governor 



                                                                                         Council of Governors 22 May 2023 
 

Page 2 of 11 
 

E Jones said that on page 8/10 where it says, ‘restorative culture’ it should read ‘just a 
restorative culture’. 
 
The Council agreed the minutes as a correct record following the amendment 
mentioned. 
 

CoG 
22/05/1.3 

Matters Arising / Action Log  

 I Green referenced the action log and said the only outstanding action regarding the 
front entrance and that there was progress being made as part of the estate’s strategy. 
 
I Green noted that the action could be closed as progress has been made and that it 
was within the financial plan for the year. 
 
All action closed on the action log. 
 

 

CoG 
22/05/2 

ASSURANCE  
 

 

CoG 
22/05/2.1 

Non-Executive Director update – Debbie Beaven  

 I Green explained that through conversations with the Council in regard to assurance 
and holding the NEDs to account, Governors had indicated that they wanted more 
opportunities to engage with NEDs.  I Green said that would like NEDs to be invited to 
the Council and to update the Governors on their role, what they have been doing over 
the course of the last period, what they think are the key strengths of the organisation 
and where some of the challenges might be. 
 
I Green welcomed Debbie Beaven to the meeting as the first NED to report to the 
Council. 
 
D Beaven thanked the Council for the opportunity to share her experiences as a NED 
over the last five months since being appointed in January 2023.   
 
D Beaven provided an extensive and detailed report of her experience as a NED since 
joining the Trust.  D Beaven explained what NEDs look for when they review reports, 
how they deep dive into issues when needed, and which sections they pay closer 
attention to through the process of holding the executive directors to account. 
 
D Beaven informed the Council that she sat on various Trust committees and listed: 

• Finance and Performance Committee – chair  
• Clinical Governance – attended 
• Audit Committee – attended 
• Charitable Funds – attended 
• Remuneration – attended 

 
D Beaven reflected that there was room for improvement on the size of the reports that 

 



                                                                                         Council of Governors 22 May 2023 
 

Page 3 of 11 
 





                                                                                         Council of Governors 22 May 2023 
 

Page 5 of 11 
 

 
I Green reported that there were some issues highlighted that the Trust was taking 
seriously and that the NEDs were seeking assurance and monitoring the situation.  S 
Hunter assured the Council that the Trust was definitely taking the survey outcomes 
seriously and that all areas of concern were being looked at. 
 
The Council noted the report. 
 

CoG 
22/05/2.4 

Health Watch Wiltshire Complaints Project



                                                                                         Council of Governors 22 May 2023 
 

Page 6 of 11 
 

working.  J Podkolinski noted that V Aldridge was doing excellent work which would 
make a huge difference to people. 
 
The Council noted the information.  
 

CoG 
22/05/2.5 

Self-Certification Report – F McNeight 
 
F McNeight asked the Council to consider the evidence aligned to each element of the 
provider licence conditions which the Trust Board is required to self-certify against.   
 
F McNeight informed the Council that the Trust was required to self-certify on an 
annual basis, as to whether they have: 

• Effective systems to ensure compliance with the conditions of the NHS 
Provider Licence, NHS legislation and the duty to have regard to the NHS 
Constitution (Condition G6) 

• Complied with governance arrangements (condition FT4) 
• The required resources available if providing commissioner requested 

services (CRS) (condition CoS7 
• Have provided Governors with the necessary training. 

  
F McNeight noted that the paper provided the Board and Council of Governors with 
assurance that the Trust fully meets the NHS Provider Licence conditions. 
 
F McNeight said that the Director of Integrated Governance and Chief Finance Officer 
reviewed the statements and evidence sets and that it was approved at Trust Board to 
respond with confirmed for all elements.  F McNeight noted that once agreed these 
papers were published on the Trust’s website. 
 
I Green confirmed that the report had been to Trust Board and that the Board was 
satisfied that the self-certification was accurate based on the information provided. 
 
The Council noted the report. 
 

 

CoG 
22/05/2.6 

Quality Account – Statement from Governors – Final Draft 
 
B Brown presented the final draft of the Quality Accounts to the Council and asked for 
the Council to consider the Governor Statement that is to be included in the Quality 
Accounts for 2022/23. 
 
B Brown explained that the Quality account was a report about 



                                                                                         Council of Governors 22 May 2023 
 

Page 7 of 11 
 

B Brown said that there is a statement of responsibilities that are from the Board that 
is included in the report and that the Council is asked to provide a statement about 
their views of the Quality Account Report. 
 
L Herklots noted that the Council of Governors had discussed the Quality Accounts at 
their informal meeting and had nothing else to add. L Herklots said that the Governors 
found the Quality Accounts layout much easier to read and informative. L Herklots 
noted that the Council was glad that the priorities that B Brown is taking forward into 
the next year reflected the points of concern for the Council such as the late 
discharge; agency spend and reducing falls. L Herklots said that she would write up 
the Governors statement and send to B Brown.  
 
I Green thanked L Herklots for drafting the Statement on behalf of the Governors for 
inclusion in the Quality Account report. 
 
The Council noted the report. 

   
CoG 
22/05/3 

PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE  
 

 

CoG 
22/05/3.1 

Integrated Performance Report 
 

 

 I Green said that as many of the issues have been raised through the previous agenda 
items and addressed, he felt that there was no need to go through the IPR in as much 
detail as in previous meetings. 
 
I Green asked Governors to raise any issues that they felt still needed to be 
addressed/highlighted from the IPR report and focus on the assurance that NEDs 
have received and query the executives.  
 
Discussion: 
J Mangan noted that there had been improvements over the years to the IPR report 
but said that the document needed to be more transparent especially in the reporting 
of the mortality rates which were months out of date. J Mangan said that the IPR did 
not accurately reflect the data as it was eight months out of date.  J Mangan said that 
there could be better reporting and more transparency. J Mangan asked if it would be 
possible to go back to the law charts so that true trends were more apparent. J 
Mangan said that he would like to see a better report than what is currently available. 
 
T Baker explained that the mortality rates would always be about six months out of 
date. B Brown said that the Trust reported the latest available data and that it was not 
comparative data as you are not supposed to be comparing it to previous months and 
that is why the data is presented in this format, but apricate that it probably is not quite 
right and that there might be a better way.   
 
J Mangan raised the issue about the HSMR reporting as he felt it was less transparent 
than it used to be.   
 
S Hunter said to take the issue offline and speak with the Chief Medical Officer, P 
Collins as the Regional Medical Director is due to consult with all medical directors in 
the region so that P Collins is reflecting that professional discussion.  S Hunter said 
that P Collins would not want to be out of step with what the Regional Medical Director 
and all the other medical directors in the Southwest as there is a standard way of 
sharing mortality rates.  B Brown informed the Council that the Trust also report static 
figures that are changing all the time coding catches up and are looking at the data 
across the region to see if a standard way of reporting could be found.  
 
I Green said that the Trust was aware of the conversations taking place nationally and 
that feedback was going to the next clinical governance committee.  I Green said to 
wait and see where those conversations go but that transparency was key but that the 
Trust needed to make sure that they were in line with other Trusts. 

 
 



                                                                                         Council of Governors 22 May 2023 
 

Page 8 of 11 
 

 
J Podkolinski asked about cost savings and inquired how the F&P committee 
searched for these. D Beaven informed the Council that it was a developing program 
and quite a lot of work had already been done, it was an ongoing process and being 
driven by the Improving Together project. D Beaven said that in the plan there are 
opportunities some of which had already been identified and that the committee now 
had a template which was good for governance in terms of understanding what the 
key plan is. D Beaven said that the committee would be tracking progress on a 
monthly basis.     
 
The Council noted the report. 
  

CoG 
22/05/4 

QUALITY AND RISK 
 

5



                                                                                         Council of Governors 22 May 2023 
 

Page 9 of 11 
 

 
CoG 
22/05/5 

GOVERNOR BUSINESS 
 

 

CoG 

oSS



                                                                                         Council of Governors 22 May 2023 
 

Page 10 of 11 
 

The Council of Governors unanimously ratified the Lead and Deputy Lead Governors 
for 2023/24. 
 

CoG 
22/05/5.4 

Constituency meetings: 
• Kennet – P Kosminsky provided a synopsis of his constituency meeting in 

Kennet and said that he strongly recommended other public Governors to hold 
their own meetings. 

 
I Green noted that from his and S Hunters perspective it was a very worthwhile 
evening. 
 
The Council was asked to note the next constituency meeting being held: 

• Salisbury City – 28th June at Salisbury Methodist Church 
 

 

CoG 
22/05/5.5 

Approval of Council of Governors Work Plan 2023 
 
The Council was asked to approve the Council of Governors workplan for 2020/24 
 
The Council ratified the workplan for 2023/24. 
 

 

CoG 
22/05/5.6 

Committee/working group reports (to note):  
• Membership and Communications – B Bull, report to note 
• Self-Assessment Committee – J Parker informed the Council that the 

committee was currently reviewing Standing Order B.1.4 and the ToR 
• Staff Governor – I Cardoso informed the Council that the ToR was in the 

process of being reviewed. 
 

 

CoG 
22/05/5.7 

Trust-Led Subgroup Reports 
• Organ Donation – L Herklots informed the Council that the group was 

concerned about the membership and had lost the representative from the 
End-of-Life team but would like to thank Vicky Porridge because virtually the 
whole of the End-of-Life team attended the meeting the previous week. L 
Herklots noted that the engagement was excellent. 

• Clinical Ethics Working Group - P Kosminsky noted that there had recently 
been a meeting and just wanted to reiterate what an extraordinary and 
magnificent body this was.  P Kosminsky advised that it allowed the clinicians 
to promote ethical problems that are placed on them in the hospital for 
discussion, but that this was not a decision-making body it just allowed them to 
air issues. P Kosminsky said that an issue had arisen about power of attorney 
and that clinicians felt that they had nowhere to turn to for advice.  S Hunter 
said that the Trust had excellent safeguarding experts and that maybe all the 
clinicians needed to be reminded that they cover a whole range of things. S 
Hunter said that it should be picked up through the Communications bulletin. 
ACTION: SH/AA 

• Patient Experience Steering Group/ Food and Nutrition Steering Group – I 
Green said that A Pryor-Jones sent a really detailed report that can be noted. 

• PLACE 
• Sustainability Committee – J Parker informed the Council that there had 

been a meeting the previous week and that G Health had reported very 
positively on her presentation to the Governors at their development day. J 
Parker said that L Arnold had effectively outlined what that would mean in 
terms of capital projects and how the Trust would achieve Net 0. J Parker said 
that it had been a very useful meeting 

• Signage – J Parker informed the Council that he and J Podkolinski attend the 
committee and that it is run by S Biddle. J Parker said that they had been 
requested to canvas views on a proposal from NHSEI about toilets being 
signposted and that a provision should be made for those people identifying as 
transgender or gender neutral. J Parker asked for a view from the Council. S 
Hunter noted that as the Trust wants to be more inclusive there were a whole 

 



                                                                                         Council of Governors 22 May 2023 
 

Page 11 of 11 
 

range of things that needed to be thought through but that this was not the right 


